
By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically you will save the Authority approx. £0.56p in 
printing costs

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith.
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh.

Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a Phartneriaethol / 
Operational and Partnership Services
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Mr Mark Anthony Galvin

Ein cyf / Our ref:      
Eich cyf / Your ref:      

Dyddiad/Date: 30 November 2016

Dear Councillor, 

PARTNERSHIPS AND GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

A  meeting of the Partnerships and Governance Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be held in 
the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB, on Tuesday, 6 December 
2016 at 2.00pm.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence  
To receive apologies for absence from Members.   

2. Declarations of Interest  
To receive declarations of personal and prejudicial interest (if any) from Members/Officers in 
accordance with the provisions of the Members Code of Conduct adopted by Council from 1 
September 2008 (including Whipping Declarations)

3. Forward Work Programme Update 3 - 6

4. Cardiff Capital Region City Deal 
 

7 - 28

Invitees: 

Councillor HJ David – Leader
Councillor HM Williams – Deputy Leader
Darren Mepham – Chief Executive

Please note that this item will be supported with a Presentation  

5. Nomination to the Collaborative Scrutiny Committee 29 - 30

6. Urgent Items  
To consider any items of business in respect of which notice has been given in accordance 
with Part 4 (paragraph 4) of the Council Procedure Rules and which the person presiding at 
the meeting is of the opinion should by reason of special circumstances be transacted at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency.  

Public Document Pack



Yours faithfully
P A Jolley
Corporate Director Operational and Partnership Services

Councillors: Councillors Councillors
N Clarke
E Dodd
EM Hughes
M Jones

JR McCarthy
HE Morgan
AD Owen
D Patel

M Thomas
RL Thomas
KJ Watts
C Westwood



REPORT TO PARTNERSHIPS AND GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

06 DECEMBER 2016

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR – OPERATIONAL AND PARTNERSHIP 
SERVICES

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to:

a) present the items due to be considered at the Committee’s meeting to be held 
on 6 February 2017 and seeks confirmation of the information required for the 
subsequent scheduled meeting to be held on 10 April 2017;

b) present a list of further potential items for prioritisation by the Committee.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives / Other Corporate Priorities

2.1 The improvement priorities identified in the Corporate Plan 2016-2020 have been 
embodied in the Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programmes. The amended 
Corporate Plan adopted by Council on 10 March 2016 formally set out the 
improvement priorities that the Council will seek to implement between 2016 and 
2020. The Overview and Scrutiny Committees engage in review and development 
of plans, policy or strategies that support the Corporate Themes.

 
3. Background  

3.1 At its meeting 4 July 2016, the Partnerships and Governance Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee will determine its Annual Forward Work Programme for 
2016/17.

4. Current Situation / Proposal

Meetings of the Partnership and Governance Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

4.1 In relation to the Committee’s next scheduled meeting to be held on 06 February 
2017, the table below lists the items to be considered and the invitees due to attend. 

Topic Invitees Specific Information 
Requested

Research to be 
Undertaken by 
the Overview & 
Scrutiny Unit

Community Safety 
- Domestic Abuse 
Strategy 

• Andrew Jolley, 
Corporate Director - 
Operational and 
Partnership Services;

• Cllr Charles Smith, 
Cabinet Member 

To provide Members with an 
update on the progress on delivery 

of the 2016/17 Domestic Abuse 
Strategy; and to provide an 
opportunity for Members to 

comment on the local delivery 
Detail research / 
To be confirmed

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Topic Invitees Specific Information 
Requested

Research to be 
Undertaken by 
the Overview & 
Scrutiny Unit

Regeneration and 
Economic Development;

Angie Bowen, Group 
Manager Housing & 
Community 
Regeneration.

priorities for the proposed 2017/18 
Domestic Abuse Strategy prior to it 

being approved by WG.

Western Bay - 
Safeguarding

Sue Cooper, Corporate 
Director - Social 
Services and Wellbeing;

 Cllr P White, Cabinet 
Member Adult Social 
Care, Health and 
Wellbeing.

To provide an update on the 
Safeguarding Adults Board and 

Safeguarding Children’s Board and 
evidence how partners are working 

together and how quickly are 
services acting to need.

Detail research / 
To be confirmed

4.2 The table below lists the items to be considered and the invitees due to attend in 
respect of the subsequent meeting of the Committee to be held on 10 April 2017.

Topic Invitees Specific Information 
Requested

Research to be 
Undertaken by 
the Overview & 
Scrutiny Unit

Community Safety 
Partnership

• Andrew Jolley, Corporate 
Director - Operational and 
Partnership Services;
• Cllr Charles Smith, 
Cabinet Member 
Regeneration and 
Economic Development;
• Community Safety Team 
Leader

To provide Members with an 
overview of Community Safety 

Partnership priorities and projects.

Detail research / 
To be confirmed

Community 
Policing

• Andrew Jolley, Corporate 
Director - Operational and 
Partnership Services;
• Cllr Charles Smith, 
Cabinet Member 
Regeneration and 
Economic Development;
• Community Safety Team 
Leader
Super Intendent Martin 
Jones.

To receive a review of the current 
community policing strategy within 
the County Borough with emphasis 

on local delivery, partnership 
intervention and community liaison.

Detail research / 
To be confirmed

Page 4



4.3 Extra Items for Consideration
 

Dementia Care

Western Bay Health and Social Care Collaborative - Western Bay 
Mental Health Project - development and evidence of success of 
the regional Western Bay Dementia Strategy. Members have asked 
questions such a 'Are we able to cope with the increasing demand 
for dementia care?' Also a request for Case Studies as evidence.

Housing Strategy TBC 

Community Safety - Community 
Cohesion Community Cohesion - Local Delivery Plan

Corporate Parenting

4.4 Corporate Parenting is the term used to describe the responsibility of a local 
authority towards looked after children and young people.  This is a legal 
responsibility given to local authorities by the Children Act 1989 and the Children 
Act 2004. The role of the Corporate Parent is to seek for children in public care the 
outcomes every good parent would want for their own children. The Council as a 
whole is the ‘corporate parent’ therefore all Members have a level of responsibility 
for the children and young people looked after by Bridgend. 1

4.5 In this role, it is suggested that Members consider how the services within the remit 
of their Committee affects children in care and care leavers, and in what way can 
the Committee can therefore assist in these areas.  

4.6 Scrutiny Champions can greatly support the Committee in this by advising them of 
the ongoing work of the Cabinet-Committee and particularly any decisions or 
changes which they should be aware of as Corporate Parents.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1 The work of the Partnerships and Governance Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
relates to the review and development of plans, policy or strategy that form part of 
the Policy Framework and consideration of plans, policy or strategy relating to the 
power to promote or improve economic, social or environmental well being in the 
County Borough of Bridgend.

6. Equality Impact Assessment 

6.1 None

7. Financial Implications

7.1 None. 

8.     Recommendations  

1 Welsh Assembly Government and Welsh Local Government Association ‘If this were my child…  A 
councillor’s guide to being a good corporate parent to children in care and care leavers’, June 2009

Page 5



8.1 The Committee is recommended to:

(i) Note the topics due to be considered at the meeting of the Committee for 06 
February 2017 and confirm if it requires any additional specific information to 
be provided by the invitees listed or the Overview & Scrutiny Unit;

(ii) Determine the topics, invitees to be invited to attend and any specific 
information it would like the invitees to provide as well as any research that it 
would like the Overview & Scrutiny Unit to undertake in relation to its meeting 
for 10 April 2017;

(iii) Revisit and consider the list of future potential items for the Committees 
Forward Work Programme and reprioritise as the Committees feels 
appropriate.

Andrew Jolley,
Corporate Director – Operational and Partnership Services

Contact Officer: Gail Jewell, Scrutiny Officer

Telephone: 01656 643695

Email: gail.jewell@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal Address: Democratic Services - Scrutiny
Bridgend County Borough Council,
Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend,
CF31 4WB

Background documents: None

Page 6



REPORT TO PARTNERSHIPS AND GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

06 DECEMBER 2016

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR – OPERATIONAL AND PARTNERSHIP 
SERVICES

CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION CITY DEAL

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the development of Cardiff 
Capital Region City Deal and to describe what impact the deal will have on 
Bridgend County Borough. Because the City Deal is still developing an update in 
the form of a presentation will be given to the committee to reflect he most recent 
position.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives / Other Corporate Priorities

2.1 The Cardiff Capital Region City Deal will support the achievement of the following 
Corporate Priorities.  

1. Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the county a 
good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to 
ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and 
ambitions of all people in the county. 

2. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the development of resources throughout the 
community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities. 

2.2 The improvement priorities identified in the Corporate Plan 2016-2020 have been 
embodied in the Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programmes. The amended 
Corporate Plan adopted by Council on 10 March 2016 formally set out the 
improvement priorities that the Council will seek to implement between 2016 and 
2020. The Overview and Scrutiny Committees engage in review and development 
of plans, policy or strategies that support the Corporate Themes.

3. Background  

3.1 During April 2016, planning workshops were held to enable Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees to carry out a review and planning exercise.  The main aim was to 
review outcomes and impacts that their committee had made during the previous 
year and to identify suggestions for future items for their Annual Forward Work 
Programme for 2016/17.

3.2 Whilst compiling items for the draft Annual Forward Work Programme, Members of 
the Partnerships and Governance Overview and Scrutiny Committee requested 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Cardiff Capital Region City Deal be added to the Forward Work Programme, for 
clarity on how it will benefit the Local Authority and its residents.

4. Current Situation / Proposal

4.1 The Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) City Deal is an agreement between the UK 
government, the Welsh government and the ten leaders of the local CCR. The 
Authorities included (Blaenau Gwent, Bridgend, Caerphilly, Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil, 
Monmouthshire, Newport, Rhondda Cynon Taf, Torfaen, Vale of Glamorgan).

4.2 The ten leaders of the local authorities, the Secretary of State for Wales, The Chief 
Secretary to the Treasury and the First Minister signed the City Deal document in a 
ceremony on 15 March 2016.  A copy of the signed documents is attached at 
Appendix A.

4.3 The City Deal provides the opportunity to deliver:

 £1.2 billion investment in the Cardiff Capital Region’s infrastructure through a 
20-year Investment Fund.

 The creation of a non-statutory Regional Transport Authority to co-ordinate 
transport planning and investment, in partnership with the Welsh Government.

 The development of capabilities in Compound Semiconductor Applications.

 The creation of a Cardiff Capital Region Skills and Employment Board.

 The CCR and the Welsh Government will work with Department of Work and 
Pensions to co-design the future employment support from 2017 for people with 
a health condition or disability and/or long term unemployed.

 A Cardiff Capital Region Business Organisation will be established to ensure 
that there is a single voice for business to work with local authority leaders.

 The Welsh Government and the Cardiff Capital Region commit to a new 
partnership approach to housing development and regeneration. This will ensure 
the delivery of sustainable communities, through the use and re-use of property 
and sites.

4.4 If successful, the City Deal has the potential to be a key transformation project that 
would improve the economic competitiveness of the CCR.

4.5 Following the signing of the agreement, the Councils are now working together to 
develop the detailed City Deal proposals and put in place all arrangements and 
documentation required to finalise the City Deal. 

4.6 One of the major schemes which the City Deal will support is the proposed South 
Wales Metro, which will offer quicker, more frequent and reliable transport services.  
New stations, routes and a single ticket system would all revolutionise how people 
get around the region and in turn help unlock the potential of the region through an 
integrated network of rail, bus and light rail. 

Page 8



4.7 In addition to improving transport links, City Deal is also intended to fund improved 
skills development, create up to 25,000 jobs, reduce unemployment and create 
better links between industry and academia in the region.

4.8 In order to develop the City Deal, the UK and Welsh Governments expect the 
Councils to have established the appropriate governance arrangements actively 
engaged the business sector and have in place an Investment Fund Assurance 
Framework that ensures the respective funded projects represent value for money.  
The current proposal is that this is to be completed by the early part of 2017.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1 The work of the Partnerships and Governance Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
relates to the review and development of plans, policy or strategy that form part of 
the Policy Framework and consideration of plans, policy or strategy relating to the 
power to promote or improve economic, social or environmental well being in the 
County Borough of Bridgend.

5.2 Although, there is currently no impact from the City Deal on the Authorities Policy 
Framework and Procedure Rules as the City Deal develops there may be a need to 
review the impact the City deal has in this respect.

6. Equality Impact Assessment 

6.1 This report is for information only and as the City Deal agreements progress 
Equality Impact Assessments will be undertaken as necessary.

7. Financial Implications

7.1 Previous reports on the City Deal have attempted to quantify the likely financial 
implications for the council. Financial scenarios are being remodelled by the 10 
councils and an update of the current position will be shared with the committee as 
part of the presentation. 

8.     Recommendations  

8.1 The Committee is asked to consider and provide comment on the developments of 
the Cardiff Capital Region.

Andrew Jolley,
Corporate Director – Operational and Partnership Services

Contact Officer: Gail Jewell, Scrutiny Officer

Telephone: 01656 643695

Email: gail.jewell@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal Address: Democratic Services - Scrutiny
Bridgend County Borough Council,

Page 9



Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend,
CF31 4WB

Background documents: None

Page 10



 
 

 

Cardiff Capital Region 

City Deal 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 
 

Page 11

http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=logo+blaenau+gwent+county+borough+council&view=detailv2&&id=F0FC0DBBF19998AC611670FAEA9A0E0C7268AEEC&selectedIndex=0&ccid=O4ojzzFL&simid=608030446472792762&thid=OIP.M3b8a23cf314b185073247f68bc8253c7o0
http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=logo+Bridgend+County+Borough+Council&view=detailv2&&id=E772A11BC53BF0092EC4BC7C5AB1B69775D8165C&selectedIndex=0&ccid=U3tAsbc1&simid=607996275714558141&thid=OIP.M537b40b1b7355e8ac09a16ff6a47bd71H0
http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=logo+Caerphilly+County+Borough+Council&view=detailv2&&id=6322E0C7EBA72A2612F15CF1069160CE9139C2EE&selectedIndex=8&ccid=ik2FnU4w&simid=607990975726027206&thid=OIP.M8a4d859d4e30603cd61dc98e808606c1o0
http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=logo+Merthyr+Tydfil+County+Borough+Council&view=detailv2&&id=66B8545F086184F4A2D6CA2B0398FC3F762EF01C&selectedIndex=0&ccid=z3r6PhiK&simid=608042386480435156&thid=OIP.Mcf7afa3e188adc92c062534d49e9c521o0
http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=logo+Monmouthshire+County+Council&view=detailv2&&id=E6865D27E1162A8C25AED3DBCC8977C98BECA457&selectedIndex=3&ccid=YxKMsdy/&simid=608003564274061011&thid=OIP.M63128cb1dcbf635b0e72a972aab23d86o0
http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=logo+Newport+City+Council&view=detailv2&&id=1D49C0B5E9B33FDBBADB35F012DDC10DF73ED6FD&selectedIndex=4&ccid=1C3/WNK4&simid=608053437432923379&thid=OIP.Md42dff58d2b86a3961a712daf9017bb0o0
http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=logo+Rhondda+Cynon+Taff+County+Borough+Council&view=detailv2&&id=618E9250869564858FB99B28844FE4101BAD4997&selectedIndex=1&ccid=cTQ3+fuT&simid=608021354029646570&thid=OIP.M713437f9fb93d4d013fa80b7d64adda0o0
http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=logo+Torfaen+County+Borough+Council&view=detailv2&&id=A358CD42A68D1BC75722450868B7E72B2D985FB9&selectedIndex=5&ccid=puNl7UAy&simid=608025726313040137&thid=OIP.Ma6e365ed403269e14b0ade6ffd2bb995H0
http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=logo+Vale+of+Glamorgan+Council&view=detailv2&&id=E7EE0A323A4CD004AC350B19876420AEA1AEC03F&selectedIndex=0&ccid=EWnNC0X5&simid=607988274191336985&thid=OIP.M1169cd0b45f9f1eda7dde61189563528H0


 
 

 

Executive Summary  

1. Cardiff Capital Region has secured a deal worth £1.2 billion. Over its lifetime, local 
partners expect the City Deal to deliver up to 25,000 new jobs and leverage an 
additional £4 billion of private sector investment.   
 

2. This City Deal will provide local partners with the powers and the resources to 
unlock significant economic growth across the Cardiff Capital Region. It is a deal 
that builds on the region’s sectoral strengths, its high skill base and three 
successful universities. The City Deal also provides an opportunity to continue 
tackling the area’s barriers to economic growth by: improving transport 
connectivity; increasing skill levels still further; supporting people into work; and 
giving businesses the support they need to innovate and grow.  

 
3. This deal will also develop stronger and more effective leadership across the 

Cardiff Capital Region, enabling ten local authority leaders to join up decision 
making, pool resources and work more effectively with local businesses.  

 
4. The Cardiff Capital Region City Deal includes:   
 

 £1.2 billion investment in the Cardiff Capital Region’s infrastructure. A key 
priority for investment will be the delivery of the South East Wales Metro, including 
the Valley Lines Electrification programme. 
 

 Connecting the region. The Cardiff Capital Region will establish a new non-
statutory Regional Transport Authority to co-ordinate transport planning and 
investment, in partnership with the Welsh Government. 

 

 Support for innovation and improving the digital network. To develop 
capabilities in Compound Semiconductor Applications the UK Government will 
invest £50 million to establish a new Catapult Centre in Wales. The Cardiff Capital 
region will also prioritise investment in research and development and provide 
support for high value innovative businesses. 

 

 Developing a skilled workforce and tackling unemployment. The Cardiff 
Capital Region Skills and Employment Board will be created (building on existing 
arrangements) to ensure skills and employment provision is responsive to the 
needs of local businesses and communities. The Cardiff Capital Region and the 
Welsh Government will work with the Department of Work and Pensions to co-
design the future employment support from 2017, for people with a health 
condition or disability and/or long term unemployed.  

 

 Supporting enterprise and business growth. A Cardiff Capital Region Business 
Organisation will be established to ensure that there is a single voice for business 
to work with local authority leaders.  
 

 Housing development and regeneration. The Welsh Government and the 
Cardiff Capital Region commit to a new partnership approach to strategic 
planning. This will ensure the delivery of sustainable communities, through the use 
and re-use of property and sites.  

 

Page 12



 
 
Page 13



 
 

Introduction  
 
5. The Cardiff Capital Region is comprised of ten local authorities: Blaenau Gwent; 

Bridgend; Caerphilly; Cardiff; Merthyr Tydfil; Monmouthshire; Newport; Rhondda 
Cynon Taff; Torfaen; and Vale of Glamorgan. It is the largest city-region in Wales 
and accounts for approximately 50% of the total economic output of the Welsh 
economy, 49% of total employment and has over 38,000 active businesses. 

 
6. The Cardiff Capital Region is an area where people want to live and work. With two 

cities (Cardiff and Newport) at its core, the region has seen significant regeneration 
and investment over recent decades. Cardiff, as the capital city, is now dynamic, 
fast growing and forecast to have a higher population growth rate over the next 20 
years than any other city in the UK.  
 

7. The area is home to a range of competitive business clusters with significant 
international and indigenous businesses across sectors such as: financial services; 
creative and digital industries; advanced manufacturing; life sciences; energy; and 
energy supply. These business clusters are serviced through a wide and 
supportive ecosystem. This ecosystem contains a thriving higher education sector 
which includes Cardiff University, Cardiff Metropolitan University and the University 
of South Wales..  

 
8. However, despite these strengths, numerous challenges remain. Gross Value 

Added, which is a measure of goods and services produced in an area, is lower 
than all but one of the English Core City Regions. There are also connectivity 
issues across the region which makes it more difficult for people in Valley’s 
communities to access economic opportunities.  

 
9. Recognising these opportunities and challenges all the signatories to this deal are 

working together to realise the vision for the Cardiff Capital Region, which is to: 
“work together to improve the lives of people in all our communities.  We will 
maximise opportunity for all and ensure we secure sustainable economic growth 
for future generations”. This City Deal provides local partners with further powers 
and tools to realise this vision.  

 

Page 14



 
 

 

Key Elements of the Deal 

Cardiff Capital Region Investment Fund 
 

10. This City Deal sets out a transformative approach in how the Cardiff Capital 
Region will deliver the scale and nature of investment needed to support the area’s 
growth plans. Central to this will be the development of a 20 year £1.2 billion 
Investment Fund, which the Cardiff Capital Region will use to invest in a wide 
range of projects.   
 

11. Both the UK and Welsh Government are contributing £500 million to this fund 
respectively. The Welsh Government funding will be provided over the first seven 
years of the Investment Fund, from 2016/17 to 2022/23. The ten local authorities in 
the Cardiff Capital Region will contribute a minimum of £120 million over the 20 
year period of the Fund. In addition, over £100m from the European Regional 
Development Fund has been committed to delivering the City Deal. 
 

12. The Cardiff Capital Region believes investments in these areas will deliver up to 
25,000 new jobs and bring forward at least £4 billion of additional investment from 
local partners and the private sector by 2036.  

 

South East Wales Metro 
 

13. A key priority, which the City Deal Investment Fund will support, is the delivery of 
the South East Wales Metro. The scheme has the potential to provide a 
significantly improved public transport system that will transform the way people 
travel around the region. 
 

14. Given the importance of the Metro to the UK Government, Welsh Government and 
Cardiff Capital Region, a proportion of the Investment Fund will be pre-allocated to 
the delivery of this scheme. This pre-allocation focuses on both phases of the 
wider Metro scheme. These are:  

 

 The delivery of the Valley Lines Electrification programme. This City Deal re-
confirms the continued shared ambition of both Government’s and the Cardiff 
Capital Region to deliver this element of the wider Metro scheme. £325 million 
of the £1.2 billion Investment Fund has already been committed to the delivery 
of this scheme (£125 million from the UK Government, £94 million from the 
Welsh Government and £106 million from the European Regional 
Development Fund). 
 

 The delivery of the wider South East Wales Metro scheme. The Welsh 
Government will pre-allocate over £400m further funding from the Investment 
Fund to deliver the wider ambitions around the Metro scheme, which is the 
subject of ongoing design work. As part of this City Deal the Welsh 
Government commits to involving the Cardiff Capital Region in the co-design 
of the wider Metro scheme and in the procurement of a delivery organisation. 

 

Page 15



 
 

15. The Department for Transport will agree the arrangements for making the agreed 
contribution to the Valley Lines Electrification project with the Welsh Government. 
The Welsh Government will agree with the local authorities the arrangements for 
managing the funding of the Metro scheme, and how it interacts with funding for 
additional Metro investments delivered through this City Deal. 

 
Wider Investment Priorities  

 
16. The remaining element of the Investment Fund will be used to take forward a wide 

range of projects and schemes that support economic growth across the Cardiff 
Capital Region. Decisions on the prioritisation of these schemes will be taken by 
the Cardiff Capital Region Cabinet. Schemes taken forward could include: further 
transport schemes; investment to unlock housing and employment sites; and 
development of research and innovation facilities.   

 
Investment Fund Assurance Framework  
 

17. The ten local authorities across the Cardiff Capital Region commit to writing and 
adopting an assurance framework for this Investment Fund. This will be agreed by 
the UK and Welsh Government. By adopting the assurance framework prior to the 
commencement of the Investment Fund, the Cardiff Capital Region will ensure that 
schemes that are taken forward (outside of the South East Wales Metro which will 
be subject to a separate assessment against an assurance framework) represent 
good value for money and are underpinned by a robust business case. 

 
18. This assurance framework will be based on existing best practice from the UK 

Government and Welsh Government. In addition the framework will also draw 
upon any local best practice for managing investment decisions across the Capital 
Region. Key elements that the assurance framework will include are:  

 

 purpose, structure and operating principles of the framework;  

 arrangements to ensure value for money and effective delivery through strong 
project development, project and options appraisal, prioritisation, and business 
case development; 

 a description of the arrangements for supporting the effective delivery and 
implementation of projects and schemes, including relationships with delivery 
bodies; and 

 arrangements which enable effective and meaningful engagement of local 
partners and the public in the investment decisions taken and subsequent 
scrutiny of these decisions.   

 
Investment Fund Gateway Assessments  
 

19. Cardiff Capital Region will be required to evaluate the impact of the Investment 
Fund in order to unlock funding that has not been pre-allocated to the South East 
Wales Metro programme. This will be comprised of gateway assessments every 
five years. To underpin these gateway assessments, an independent review will be 
commissioned to evaluate the economic benefits and economic impact of the 
investments made under the scheme, including whether the projects have been 
delivered on time and to budget. This assessment will be funded by the Cardiff 
Capital Region, but agreed at the outset with the UK Government. The next five 

Page 16



 
 

year tranche of funding will be unlocked if the UK and Welsh Governments are 
satisfied that the independent assessment shows the investments to have met key 
objectives and contributed to national growth. 

 
Local Authority Borrowing  

 
20. Throughout the course of the City Deal programme the ten Cardiff Capital Region 

local authorities will be responsible for financing the capital investment programme. 
The difference in the profile between the proposed investment and the capital grant 
funding may require a local authority or authorities to borrow to fund any difference 
in expenditure and grant. The cost of any external borrowing is the responsibility of 
the relevant local authority or local authorities and is to be managed in accordance 
with prudential principles – it must be prudent, affordable and sustainable.  

 
21. In a scenario where a future Investment Fund Gateway is not achieved, leading to 

any reduction or cessation of City Deal grant, then it will be the responsibility of 
individual local authorities within the Cardiff Capital Region to manage the financial 
impact of this within their local authority budget, utilising reserves or surpluses as 
required.  

 
Additional Flexibilities  

 
22. In order to deliver the Cardiff Capital Region‘s City Deal commitments and a 

longer-term economic strategy, the ten local authorities have requested greater 
financial autonomy and flexibility. As part of this City Deal the Welsh Government 
will explore with the Cardiff Capital Region:  
 

 the devolution of business rate income above an agreed growth baseline to 
provide funding for the City Deal programme; 

 providing the ability to levy an infrastructure supplement; 

 creating the option for the local authorities to use alternative finance 
sources; and 

 removing conditions around some specific Welsh Government grants, to 
allow funding to be pooled at the regional level in areas such as school 
support and interventions that seek to address poverty. 

 
 

Page 17



 
 

 

Connecting the Cardiff Capital Region   
 

23. Transport has a key role in delivering economic growth and improving outcomes 
for people by connecting communities, business, jobs, facilities and services. 
However across the Capital Region there are significant congestion and transport 
capacity issues that need to be addressed. The City Deal Investment Fund and 
South East Wales Metro will make a significant contribution to improving transport 
connectivity. 

 
24. In addition to this investment the Cardiff Capital Region will establish a new non-

statutory Regional Transport Authority to co-ordinate transport planning and 
investment, in partnership with the Welsh Government. The Cardiff Capital Region 
Transport Authority will be responsible for: 

 

 pooled local transport resources; 

 regional planning for the local transport network;   

 working with Transport for Wales to ensure objectives for transport investment 
are aligned;  

 exploring the creation of a single integrated ticketing platform for public 
transport across the Cardiff Capital Region; 

 working in partnership with the Welsh Government to define the priorities of the 
South East Wales Metro concept and to support its delivery; and 

 working in partnership with the Welsh Government to promote the development 
of integrated aviation routes from Cardiff Airport and St Athan Enterprise 
Zone, to deliver economic benefit. 

 
 

 

Page 18



 
 

 

Investing in Innovation and the Digital Network  

 
25. The Cardiff Capital Region has an aspiration to extend the “arc of innovation” that 

runs along the M4 corridor into the Cardiff Capital Region.  Capitalising on the 
research strengths of the Region’s three universities, the Cardiff Capital Region will 
designate an “Innovation District” that helps to: create and nurture new high growth 
businesses; increases investment in research and development; and provides the 
skills that businesses need now and in the future. 

 
Developing the Compound Semiconductor Sector   
 

26. To transform the UK’s capability, and help position Cardiff as the European leader 
in Compound Semiconductor applications, the UK Government will invest £50 
million to establish a new Catapult in Wales. This new Catapult will complement 
the work of other organisations in Wales who are already working in this important 
area, including the Compound Semiconductor Institute at Cardiff University and the 
Compound Semiconductor Centre, a joint venture between Cardiff University and 
IQE. 
 

27. Recognising this opportunity, the Cardiff Capital Region will prioritise interventions 
that support the development of an internationally-competitive Compound Semi-
Conductor cluster. Local partners believe that this will put the UK at the heart of an 
emerging global growth technology. 

 
Innovation Investment  
 

28. To accelerate the growth of innovation and facilitate investment in research and 
development, the Cardiff Capital Region will seek to prioritise: 

 

 mechanisms to support high growth sectors; 

 the development of new facilities and employments sites; 

 new approaches to public service delivery; 

 the Software Academy in Newport and related programmes across the Capital 
Region; 

 investment in intellectual property creation and commercialisation; 

 adding value and complimenting existing innovation support; and 

 developing a cyber-security academy with the University of South Wales. 
 
Innovate UK  
 

29. Innovate UK is now planning to increase its footprint and presence in Wales, in 
order to: raise the awareness and engagement in Innovate UK programmes and 
activities; to strengthen its links with business, universities and other key partners; 
and to work with the Welsh Government to promote and support innovation. 

 
Data 
 

30. Cardiff Capital Region commits to developing proposals for how better and more 
flexible use of data could be used to drive innovation across the public sector and 

Page 19



 
 

within the wider economy. The Cardiff Capital Region will present a clear case to 
the UK Government for how a different approach to the use of specific data would 
improve service delivery and would benefit particular groups. 

 
The Digital Network   
 

31. Innovation will also be a central theme within the Cardiff Capital Region’s ambition 
to deliver an outstanding digital infrastructure and wider ecosystem to support 
economic growth. To continue to build on investments in next generation 
broadband, and the Region’s reputation as one of the fastest growing tech hubs in 
the UK, the Cardiff Capital Region will prioritise: 

 

 exploring the case for direct international connectivity; 

 the mobile infrastructure across 4G and 5G technologies that add value to 
existing provision; 

 increasing Wi-Fi services across public transport; 

 digital solutions to solve the big problems, such as smart housing, citizen 
payments and open data challenges; and 

 facilitating collaboration between stakeholders to identify and exploit 
opportunities.

Page 20



 
 

 

Developing a Skilled Workforce and Tackling Unemployment  
 

32. This City Deal will improve the co-ordination and delivery of skills and employment 
support across the Capital Region.  It will help to increase the number of people 
moving into work (including those that have been out of work for a long time), 
increase the number of people undertaking an apprenticeship or other relevant 
skills provision and give people the skills they need to compete in a global 
employment market. 

 
The Cardiff Capital Region Skills and Employment Board  
 

33. To ensure skills provision is adapted to local economic and social needs and 
provides the best value for money, the Cardiff Capital Region will strengthen the 
existing Learning, Skills and Innovation Partnership. This will be re-launched in 
2016 as the Cardiff Capital Region Skills and Employment Board.  
 

34. The Partnership will represent a wide range of stakeholders, including: business 
bodies; higher and further education; local authorities and the Welsh Government. 
It will be responsible for: 

 

 Cardiff Capital Region’s skills and worklessness strategy; 

 pooled local authority skills resource; 

 producing an annual regional plan for employment and skills. This annual plan, 
led by industry, will set out how both the existing skills needs of businesses 
and the Capital Region’s future skills challenges will be addressed; 

 influencing and monitoring the delivery and impact of employment and skills 
programmes across the Region; 

 ensuring an industry led approach to the design and delivery of apprenticeship 
programmes meets the needs of both business and apprentices; 

 supporting the Welsh Government’s “Curriculum for Wales, Curriculum for Life” 
plan, by encouraging closer alignment between future employer skills needs 
and education provision across the region; and 

 ensuring European Union funding investments in skills and employment add 
value and align with other programmes.  

 
Work and Health Programme  
 

35. Cardiff Capital Region and the Welsh Government will work with Department for 
Work and Pensions to co-design future employment support from 2017, for people 
with a health condition or disability and/or long term unemployed1, many of whom 
are currently referred to the Work Programme and Work Choice. 
 

36. The respective roles of the Department for Work and Pensions and Cardiff Capital 
Region in the co-design include: 

 

 Department for Work and Pensions setting the funding envelope; however 
Cardiff Capital Region and the Welsh Government can top up this if they wish, 
but are not required to. 

                                                           
1 Long term unemployed is defined as claiming benefits for 24 months. 

Page 21



 
 

 Cardiff Capital Region and the Welsh Government setting out how they will join 
up local public services in order to improve outcomes for this group. 

 Department for Work and Pensions setting the high level performance 
framework, ensuring support appropriately reflects labour market issues. The 
primary aim will be to reduce unemployment and move people into sustained 
employment.  

 Cardiff Capital Region (working with the Welsh Government) will have input into 
determining specific local outcomes that reflect their labour market priorities, 
however these outcomes should be complementary to the ultimate 
employment outcome. In determining any local outcome(s) Cardiff Capital 
Region and the Welsh Government will work with the Department for Work 
and Pensions to take account of the labour market evidence base and 
articulate how these will both fit within the wider strategic and economic 
context and deliver value for money. 

 
37. Before delivery commences the Department for Work and Pensions, Cardiff 

Capital Region and the Welsh Government will set out an agreement covering the 
respective roles of each party in the delivery and monitoring of the support. This 
will include a mechanism by which each party can raise and resolve any concerns 
that arise. 
 

38. The Department for Work and Pensions sets the contracting arrangements, 
including contract package areas, but should consider any proposals from Cardiff 
Capital Region on contract package area geography. 
 

39. Providers will be solely accountable to the Department for Work and Pensions, 
although Cardiff Capital Region and the Welsh Government will be involved in the 
tender evaluation.  
 

40. The Department for Work and Pensions and Cardiff Capital Region will develop a 
mechanism by which Cardiff Capital Region (working with the Welsh Government) 
can escalate to the Department for Work and Pensions any concerns about 
provider performance/reaching local agreements and require the Department for 
Work and Pensions to take formal contract action where appropriate. 

Page 22



 
 

 

Supporting Enterprise and Business Growth  
 

41. The Cardiff Capital Region is committed to improving the co-ordination of local and 
national business support arrangements. This includes working in partnership with 
the Welsh Government to address identified barriers to growth, support spatial and 
sectoral priorities and to target emerging opportunities for driving economic 
performance. 

 
The Cardiff Capital Region Business Organisation  
 

42. Local partners recognise that ensuring there is a strong business voice to guide 
both the design and delivery of business support across the region will be critical.  
 

43. Therefore working with public sector partners, the business community, and 
representative bodies, Cardiff Capital Region will establish a Cardiff Capital 
Regional Business Organisation. This organisation will provide a clear business 
voice that will influence and shape business support programmes. In creating the 
Board, a mapping and consultation process will be undertaken with existing 
advisory Boards operating within the Region. This will ensure roles and remits are 
complimentary and add value. The Board will be responsible for:  

 

 articulating the regional needs of business; 

 identifying regional priorities for existing business support services; and 

 designing future business support programmes. 
 

44. Membership will be drawn from across a range of sectors and interests, including 
social enterprises and mutuals. A joint Confederation of British Industry, Federation 
of Small Business, Institute of Directors and South Wales Chamber of Commerce 
statement outlined the underlying principles for the Business Organisation. The 
final structure will be designed by the Cardiff Capital Region business community.   

 
Integration of Local Business Support Services and Resources  

45. To ensure that relevant business support and promotional activities are delivered 
at the Capital Region level, local resources will be aligned to create an Integrated 
Delivery Unit. This unit will deliver regionally significant aspects of economic 
development. This includes: business development; marketing; tourism; and 
inward investment.  
 

46. The Integrated Delivery Unit, working in collaboration with the Welsh Government 
and the proposed Regional Business Organisation, will ensure that any new 
business support provision complements existing national initiatives. In addition, 
through this collaborative approach, the Welsh Government is committed to 
working with the Cardiff Capital Region to explore where existing business support 
provision can be built on or expanded, whilst avoiding duplication.  A number of 
existing programmes (for example Business Wales, which offers a one stop shop 
advice and referral service to SMEs and Entrepreneurs) have already been 
designed through consultation with industry and have the potential to be aligned 
with identified regional needs and priorities.   

Page 23



 
 

 
47. Further to this, the Welsh Government is also committed to working in partnership 

with the Cardiff Capital Region to promote the area at a global level. As part of this, 
the Welsh Government will ensure greater levels of visibility with the Welsh 
Government’s own overseas offices. In addition the Welsh Government will 
continue to work closely with UK Trade and Investment to ensure that its 
propositions are promoted and co-ordinated across the UK Trade and Investment 
overseas post network. 

 
 

 

Page 24



 
 

 

Housing Development and Regeneration  
 

48. Delivering an increase in house building across the Cardiff Capital Region will help 
to address critical housing shortages especially for first time buyers and those 
unable to join the ‘housing ladder’.  House building is also a critical element of the 
economy as it: stimulates demand within the supply chain during construction and 
through purchases by the eventual occupiers; contributes to a more balanced 
regional planning framework; and is a major employer in its own right.   
 

49. The City Deal presents a unique opportunity for the ten local authority areas to 
come together to develop and deliver a strategic approach to housing, 
regeneration and economic growth which will create an accessible, liveable, ‘work-
life integrated’ and highly connected Capital Region. To support this ambition the 
Cardiff Capital Region will: 

 

 Commit to the development of a partnership between the Cardiff Capital Region 
and the Welsh Government to take a strategic and balanced approach to 
housing and regeneration, focussing development on where it is most needed 
– in a regional and coordinated way. 

 Ensure that new housing is linked to the delivery of sustainable and balanced 
communities, through the re-use of property and sites. Further, both the Welsh 
Government and Cardiff Capital Region will ensure that proposals to improve 
the efficiency and quality of the housing stock are aligned with other 
regeneration outcomes.  

 Establish a collective way of working, for example, through an asset 
development vehicle to progress speculative opportunities for potential Cardiff 
Capital Region regeneration ventures. 

 Develop an integrated public-private housing offer, with clarity over tenure, mix 
type, design and affordability with prototyping for ‘settlements of the future’.  

 Utilise innovation in local procurement to secure supply chain benefits, local 
labour and other social clauses to maximise value.  

 Establish the delivery of renewable energy-led regeneration and housing 
programmes and ensure the principles of ‘clean-tech’ are anchored within 
physical development initiatives. This will contribute to ensuring ‘future-
proofing’ and creation of new supply chain networks. 

 Engage the affordable housing sector providers in the region as one network. 
Working with Cardiff Capital Region this network will develop a regional 
“Housing Plus” strategy in which added value benefits such as training 
construction apprenticeships, energy resilience and job creation are clearly set 
out and adopted. This will provide a framework against which site regeneration 
schemes can be prioritised for investment. 

 
50. In both the planning and delivery of new housing and regeneration projects, the 

Cardiff Capital Region will ensure that there is alignment to current Welsh 
Government programmes including Creating Vibrant and Viable Places – the 
Welsh Government’s regeneration framework and increasing the supply and 
standards of housing.

Page 25



 
 

Cardiff Capital Region Governance  
 

51. The ten local authority partners of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal have 
agreed to establish a governance model that: 

 

 complies with the existing statutory framework that exists in Wales to deliver 
this City Deal; 

 strengthens and streamlines the existing governance and partnership 
arrangements across the Capital Region; 

 improves business involvement in local decision making; 

 provides confidence and assurance to both the UK and Welsh Government 
that the local authority leaders are making decisions which will drive economic 
growth across the Capital Region; and 

 enables local authorities to explore with the Welsh Government alternative 
governance arrangements in the medium term. 

 
Cardiff Capital Region Cabinet 

52. Utilising the existing statutory framework, the ten local authorities will establish a 
Cardiff Capital Region Cabinet. The Cabinet will have the status of a Joint 
Committee and will be the ultimate decision making body in the governance 
structure. 
 

53. The establishment of a Capital Region Cabinet will be the first step in the 
development of greater city-region governance across the Cardiff Capital Region. 
The Cabinet, which will comprise the ten participating local authorities, will 
provide the basis for initial decision making regarding the Investment Fund. In 
addition the Cardiff Capital Region Cabinet will be responsible for: 

 

 management of the Cardiff Capital Region Investment Fund; 

 additional devolved funding provided to the Capital Region;  

 the Cardiff Capital Region Transport Authority; 

 contracting with Transport for Wales on prioritised Metro projects; 

 control over devolved business rate income above an agreed growth forecast, 
subject to Welsh Government agreement; 

 strategic planning including housing, transport planning and land use; 

 influencing skills and worklessness programmes; 

 an Inward investment and marketing strategy; and 

 considering the scope for strengthening Capital Region governance further. 
 

54. A comprehensive agreement will be drawn up between the participating 
authorities which will bind and commit each individual local authority and any 
successor authority (in the event of local government re-organisation) for such 
duration as is necessary to deliver the City Deal. The agreement will also allow 
for the possibility of additional functions and powers to be devolved to the 
Cabinet in the future. 
 

55. The Cardiff Capital Region commit to reviewing the City Deal governance and 
exploring the future options for moving to even stronger and effective governance 
that is legally binding. The review will include consulting the Welsh Government 

Page 26



 
 

and the UK Government to identify actions needed to take forward future 
governance options.  

 
Strategic Regional Planning 

 
56. The Cardiff Capital Region, in partnership with the Welsh Government, will 

commit to the creation of an integrated strategic development plan that 
incorporates housing and employment land-use with wider transport plans. The 
strategic plan will provide the underpinning blue-print for development across the 
city-region.   

 
Cardiff Capital Region Economic Growth Partnership 

57. A Cardiff Capital Region Economic Growth Partnership will be established to 
bring together business, higher education and local government. The partnership 
would be responsible for setting the overarching city-region economic 
development strategy, as well as monitoring and making recommendations to the 
Cabinet with regard to City Deal implementation. The partnership will have a 
specific role to provide advice on investment decisions. This will ensure the City 
Deal and other interventions make an impact on economic growth and increase 
employment. 

 
58. The Partnership’s membership and terms of reference will be established using 

the best international practice such as the Danish Growth Forums, as well as the 
Local Enterprise Partnership model in England and the Economic Leadership 
Board established in Glasgow.  

 
Independent Growth and Competitiveness Commission 

 
59. The Cardiff Capital Region will establish an independent Growth and 

Competitiveness Commission to support the city region’s economic and 
investment strategy.  It will review activities related to the City Deal as well as 
wider economic and growth interventions.   
 

60. The Commission’s first task will be to review the evidence about the functional 
economic area and advise how best to generate Gross Value Added growth and 
support the ambitions of a dynamic capital region.   
 

61. The Commission will be jointly established by the ten local authorities that 
comprise the Cardiff Capital Region in consultation with the Welsh and UK 
Governments. 
 

62. The Commission will examine the challenges and opportunities for economic 
growth and competitiveness and make recommendations for how the Cardiff 
Capital Region can achieve its full growth potential. 

 
Delivery, Monitoring and Evaluation 
 

63. Cardiff Capital region will work with the UK Government and the Welsh 
Government to develop an agreed implementation, monitoring and evaluation 

Page 27



 
 

plan in advance of implementation, which sets out the proposed approach 
delivery and evaluating the impact of delivery.  

 
64. The Cardiff Capital Region City Deal will be monitored by the Joint Cabinet. The 

joint programme management team will provide the Cabinet, the UK Government 
and the Welsh Government with quarterly performance report that will: 

 

 highlight City Deal successes; 

 provide a performance narrative for each element of the City Deal against 
agreed implementation plan timescales; 

 provide information on outputs and outcomes agreed;  

 identify mitigating actions for projects and programmes that are not being 
delivered to agreed timescales. 
 

65. The UK Government and Welsh Government will work with the Cardiff Capital 
Region to agree a timetable for the production of these reports and will convene 
regular progress meetings.  
 

66. The Cardiff Capital Region commit to recognising the “City Deal” in promoting 
and branding investments made as a result of this Deal. This includes 
acknowledging the UK Government equally alongside other funding partners. The 
Cardiff Capital Region may wish to explore a single unique brand identity that 
represents the whole Capital Region area and all the partners involved in 
delivering the City Deal. 

 

Page 28



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO PARTNERSHIPS AND GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

6 DECEMBER 2016

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR – OPERATIONAL AND PARTNERSHIP 
SERVICES

NOMINATION TO THE COLLABORATIVE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to seek nominations for the Collaborative Scrutiny 
Committee.

2. Connection to the Corporate Improvement Objectives / Other Corporate 
Priorities 

2.1 The improvement priorities identified in the Corporate Plan 2016-2020 have been 
embodied in the Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programmes. The amended 
Corporate Plan adopted by Council on 10 March 2016 formally set out the 
improvement priorities that the Council will seek to implement between 2016 and 
2020. The Overview and Scrutiny Committees engage in review and development 
of plans, policy or strategies that support the Corporate Themes.

3. Background 

3.1 In 2015 a report went to Council that approved a restructure of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees.  Whilst this restructure moved away from Directorate remits 
and silo working it was identified that the existing structure of the Scrutiny 
Committees did not allow for cross-cutting scrutiny. Therefore it was proposed that 
a number of meetings be identified to facilitate Collaborative Committees to deal 
with cross-cutting issues.

3.2 Unfortunately Collaborative Scrutiny Committees were unable to be implemented 
over the last 12 months due to resource issues and therefore it was agreed by the 
Scrutiny Chairs to reduce the proposed number of meetings at this stage to first 
pilot with a single item to determine the future capacity for further Collaborative 
Committees.

4. Current Situation

4.1 During the setting of Scrutiny Committees’ Annual Forward Work Programmes 
Members were asked to identify items for the proposed pilot Collaborative 
Committee.  Following this, the Scrutiny Chairs agreed to take forward the item of 
Dementia Care within the Local Authority to consider in detail the work being 
undertaken in this area against the increasing demand and its rising national status.

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



4.2 It was also agreed by the Scrutiny Chairs that one Committee would be nominated 
as the lead for the Collaborative Committee determined by where the subject matter 
is most prominent.

4.3 This Collaborative Committee to consider the subject of Dementia Care will 
therefore be lead by the Adult Social Care (ASC) Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
and will involve Members of the Partnerships and Governance (P&G) and Children 
and Young People (CYP) Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

4.4 The Committee is therefore asked to nominate three Members to sit on this 
Collaborative Committee alongside Members of the ASC and CYP Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees to consider the item of Dementia Care.

4.5 It is also an opportunity for all Members of the Committee to put forward suggested 
information for the Collaborative Committee to request and consider as well as 
proposed invitees that they believe would assist in the Committee’s deliberation.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1 The report has no direct effect but seeks to broadly support the Authority in the 
development of future services. 

6. Equalities Impact 

6.1 There are no implications in this report. 

7. Financial Implications

7.1 None

8. Recommendations

The Committee is asked to: 

 Nominate the three Members of the Committee onto the Collaborative 
Scrutiny Committee;  

 To put forward suggested requests for information for the Committee to 
receive as well as proposed invitees.

Andrew Jolley,
Corporate Director – Operational and Partnership Services 

Contact Officer: Gail Jewell, Scrutiny Officer 

Tel: (01656) 643695
Email: Scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk

Background Documents: None

Page 30


	Agenda
	3 Forward Work Programme Update
	4 Cardiff Capital Region City Deal
	Cardiff Capital Region City Deal Appendix A

	5 Nomination to the Collaborative Scrutiny Committee

